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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

The Board of Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 13% Directot’s Report on business and operations of
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited (“DMI HFC/Company”) along with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. This Report is read with the Management Discussion and
Analysis including details of the macroeconomic scenario, Company’s performance and various initiatives taken by
the Company,

OVERVIEW:

The Company is registered with the National Housing Bank (“NHB”) as a Housing Finance Company and is engaged
in the business of providing housing loans to individuals and loan against property to individuals. The Company is
categorized as a Middle Layer NBFC (‘ML-NBFC’) under Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {(Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023. The Company provides easy home lcans, especially
to those in the lower income and economically backward segments and is also providing the benefit of subsidy under
Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) to the eligible home loan borrowers.

Further, the Company has an expanded network across various states and at present has 41 branches all over the country
with 411 employees on payroll.

It is also a registered intermediary within the meaning of Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India
(‘IRDAI") as a Corporate Agent.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

(X in Million)

Particulars March 31, | March 31, 2023
2024

Income from Operations 2,188.39 1542.36
Other Income 27.63 -
Total Income 2,216.02 1542.36
Total Expenditure 1,509.50 1,068.93
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 706.52 47343
Tax Expenses/(Credits) 179.99 118.37
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 526.53 355.00
Other Comprehensive Income (0.50) 1.15
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 526.03 356.21
Capital Redemption Reserve z -
Reserve Fund u/s Sec 29C of NHB Act, 1987
Balance at the beginning of the year 223.63 152.62
Add: Amount transferred from surplus of Profit and 105.21 7101
Loss
Balance at the end of the year (A) 328.84 223.63
Retained earning
Balance at the beginning of the year 816.31 521,11
Add: Profit for the year after all deductions 420.83 265.19
Balance in Profit/(Loss) Account in balance sheet (B) 1,237.14 816.31
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Share Based Payment Reserve (C) 83.27 61.02
Share and Warrant Premium (D) 542.41 513.22
Reserves and Surplus (A+B+C+D) 2,191.65 1,614.18

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company had shown a tremendous performance resulting in overall increase in the total income to ¥ 2,216.02
Million in FY 2023-24 as compared to ¥ 1,542.36 Million in the previous financial year, The Profit after Tax increased
to T 526.53 Million as on March 31, 2024, in comparison to ¥ 355.06 Million as on March 31, 2023,

PORTFOLIO GROWTH AND ASSET QUALITY

Loan Portfolio & Net Owned Funds

The portfolio of the Company has grown to INR 15,489.58 million as on March 31, 2024, from INR 11,408.84 million
as on March 31, 2023, in-spite of slow and slur economic environment. The portfolio distribution for the financial year
2023-24 in comparison to previous financial year is presented as under:

8. No | Particulars 2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23
Amount (Percentage) Amount (Percentage)
(Million) (Million)
1. | Housing Loans 12,387.51 79.97% 9,659.48 84.67%
2. | Non-Housing Loans 3.102.07 20.03% 1,749.36 15.33%
3. | Corporate Loans = s & =
Total 15,489.58 100% 11,408.84 100%

Further, the Company had a healthy composition of Salaried v/s. Self Employed Non-Professional (‘SENP?) customers and
Home Loan v/s Non-Home loan stands at comfortable positions. The Average portfolio Loan to Value (‘LTV”) was 45.50%
approx.

The Company ensures that in future, with planned strategies and risk control measures to maintain a stablerate of
performance and achieve positive and incremental growth in loan portfolio.

The Net Owned Funds of the Company stood at INR 6,818.43 million as on March 31,'2024, as compared to INR
6,433.20 million as on March 31, 2023,

The movement of NPA for last three Financial Years is mentioned below:

(in Millions)
Particulars March 2022 March 2023 March 2024
GNPA 83.3 64.27 82.14
NNPA 534 44.59 53.33

Further, the Company had also as per the established strong risk management procedures and systems of evaluation of
credit worthiness of prospective clients which seeks to involve a process of determining the eligibility of the clients for
funding on various parameters and predefined criteria which in turn determines the ability of the borrower to repay his
obligations,

The amount of Gross NPA as on March 31, 2024, was INR 82.14 million against which the Company had as per the
Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
had fulfilled the requirement for maintenance of the required provisions.
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The Gross NPA level stood at 0.53 % and Net NPA stood at 0.35 % as on March 31, 2024,

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) provisioning

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 109, the Company measures expected credit losses on its
financial instruments and had a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end. Accordingly, the
Company has created adequate ECL provisioning as required, Details of the same are part of the notes bthe accounts of
the audited financials for the period ended March 31, 2024,

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if the relationship betweet. key economic
trends like Gross Domestic Product (*GDP”), Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India,
inflation etc. with the estimate of Probability of Default (‘PD"), Loss Given Default ('LGD’) determined by the Company
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD and LGD rates by the Company may not be always
reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic
trends reasonably.

The Company had also duly complied with the prudential norms on provisioning requirement as prescribed by the
Reserve Bank of India (from time to time) for Standard Loan Asset {category-wise)} & for Doubtful-assets (if any).

CAPITAL TO RISK (WEIGHTED) ADEQUACY RATIO (CRAR)

The Company has maintained a healthy CRAR of 63.48% which was higher than the prescribed minimum CRAR as
per the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021 as amended from time to time. Below mentioned are the details of CRAR of Tier I and Tier II Capital.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) CRAR (%) 63.48% 85.59%
(ii) CRAR — Tier I Capital (%) 63.43% 85.53%
(iii) CRAR — Tier II Capital (%) 0.05% 0.06%

AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE CARRIED TO RESERVES

The break-up of the amounts/profits proposed to be carried to reserves for FY 2023-24, is set out hereinbelow:

(Z in Million)
Particulars March 31, 2024 [March 31, 2023
Capital Redemption Reserve - -
Reserve Fund u/s Sec 29C of NHB Act, 1987 105.21 71.01
DIVIDEND

During the year under review, no interim dividend was declared by the beard. Further, considering the capital-intensive
nature of the business, the business plan of the Company and with a view to plough back the profits, your Board has
not recommended dividend for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 for consideration of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) in order to build a strong base for its long-term growth.

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

Share Capital

During FY 2023-24, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company underwent following changes:



@ DMI HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Annual Report-2023-24

Issuance of Equity Shares:

Below mentioned changes took place in the Equity share capital of the Company during the FY 2023-24:

A, Allotment of equity shares to Employees on exercise of Employee Stock Option Plan (*ESQP”):

In accordance with the provisions of DMI HFC Employee Stock Option Plan, 2018, the Company allotted 1,13,704
equity shares for an aggregate consideration of INR 14,05,140 to specified employee/ ex-employees of the Company
on exercise of their stock options during the financial year 2023-24.

B. Allotment of equity to Emplovees on exercise of Warrants:

The Company had allotted 1,15,607 equity shares for an aggregate consideration of INR 29,44,777 to Ex-employees
of the Company on exercise of convertible share warrants during the financial year 2023-24,

Issue of Convertible Share Warranis:

The Company during the financial year under review, issued and allotted 7,45,819 convertible share warrants on August
14, 2023, to employees of Group Company in accordance with the terms of Warrant Subscription Agreement executed
between the Company and the Warrant Holders.

Reduction of share capital:

Pursuant to Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal’s (‘NCLT's’) order dated January 30, 2024, the Company’s
capital was reduced by cancelling and extinguishing uncalled and unpaid part of the capital issued to Shivashish
Chatterjee & Yuvraja Chanakya Singh on behalf of K2VZ Partnership Firm. Accordingly, 4,94,90,900 number of partly
paid-up equity shares issued to Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee & Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh on behalf of K2VZ
Partnership Firm was reduced to 13,70,571 number of fully paid-up equity shares.

BORROWINGS PROFILE

Borrowings in the form of Term Loans/Cash Credit from banks/Refinance from the National Housing Bank and
Non-Convertible Debentures

The total outstanding borrowings of the Company as on March 31, 2024, in the form of Term Loans, Cash Credit from
Banks, borrowings from the National Housing Bank and Non-Convertible Debentures are as follows:

{a) Borrowings in the Form of Term Loans and Cash Credits:

S.Neo Particulars Outstanding Amount (Million)
L. Cash Credit from Banks 0.00
2, Term Loans 6600.81

{b) National Housing Bank Refinance;

S. No Details of the Sanction Outstanding as on March 31, 2024
(Million)
1. Regular Refinance Scheme 308.15
2, Liquidity  Infusion  Facility 127.79
(‘LIFT*) Scheme of NHB
3. Refinance Scheme — FY*23 38.89
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4. [iberalised Refinance Scheme 121.00
(‘LRS’) w/o concession

5. RS with concession for loans up 270.00
ko Rs. 10 lakhs

6. RS with concession for loans in 58.00
rural aeras

7. LLRS with concession for loans to 31.00
Scheduled Caste (‘SC’) /
Scheduled Tribe (*ST) borrowers
Totals 1,254.83

(c) Non-Convertible Debentures:

During the Financial year 2023-24, the Company had issued 4 tranches of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs). The
debt securitics of the Company as on March 31, 2024, stands at INR 3,452.90 million. During the Financial year under
review, there had been INR 3,466.00 million Non-convertible debentures which had become due for redemption. Thus,
NCDs under pata 68.1 and 68.2 of Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company

{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 stands NIL.

To summarize, the borrowing mix of the Company consisting of term loans, working capital, cash crzdit limits and

non-convertible debentures stands as follows as on March 31, 2024:

5. No

Type of Security

Amount outstanding (X

% of total borrowings

in Miltion) outstanding as on March

31, 2024
1 Term Loans 6,600.81 58.37%
2 Refinance from NHB 1,254.83 11.10%
3 Non-Convertible Debentures 3.452.90 30.53%
Total 11,308.54 100.00%

{d) Credit Ratings

Further, the ratings assigned by the credit rating agencies during the financial year 2023-24 are as under:

Type of Borrowing Rating Agency Amount (¥ | Rating

in Million)
Long Term Bank Facility CARE Ratings - Reaffirmed at CARE AA-;

Stable and withdrawn

Non-Convertible Debentures Brickwotks Ratings 4,000.00 BWR AA- (CE) / Stable
Long term fund-based term loan | FCRA Ratings 7,750.00 [ICRA)AA (Stable)
Long term fund-based cash credit | ICRA Ratings 750.00 [ICRA]AA (Stable)
Long tenm fund-based others 1CRA Ratings 6,500.00 [ICRAJAA (Stable)
Non-Convertible Debentures ICRA Ratings 3,534.00 [ICRAJAA (Stable)

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN, 2018 AND ESOP SCHEMES

Hurman Resources are key to the growth and success of an organization, more so in the financial services industry. It was therefore
imperative to align the interesis of the employees and shareholders of the Company. Employee Stock Option schemes have been
universally accepted as retention and wealth creation tool that meets this objective. To attract, retain, motivate and incentivize the
employees at all levels, your Board and Shareholders had approved DMI Employee Stock Option Plan — 2018 to issue stock

options not exceeding 5% of the Fully Diluted Equity Capital of the Company as on the Option Grant Date.
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Further, the Company in the meeting of Nomination and remuneration Committee, had proposed and approved the following
schemes falling under DMI HFC ESOP Plan 2018 for 2023-24 and thus, granted the options under the approved schemes.

Schemes Effective Date
DMI Housing Finance ESOP Plan 2023 01-Apr-23
DMI Housing Finance Employment Contract — July’23 01-Jul-23
Founder Circle Award 2022-23 (HFC Qct'23) 01-Oct-23
DMI Housing Finance Employment Coniract — Nov’23 01-Nov-23
DMI Housing Finance Employment Contract — Jan’24 01-Jan-24

Also, as per the existing DMI HFC ESOP Plan 2018 (“ESOP Policy™) approved by the Board and Shareholders, the
employees of the Company are entitled to acquire Ordinary equity shares of the Company at the time of exercise of
stock options,

During the financial year under review, 1,13,704 stock options were exercised by employees of the Company under
various applicable ESOP schemes of the Company.

The disclosures required as per Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014 are given
below:

(a)  Options granted during the FY 2023-24: 45,05,525

{b)  Options vested: 9,61,469

{c) Options exercised: 1,13,704

(d)  Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option; 1,13,704
(¢)  Options lapsed: 83,869

) Exercise price: As per various ESOP Schemes of the Company

(g)  Variation of terms of options: Not Applicable

(h)  Money realized by exercise of options: 14,05,140

(i) Total number of options in force: 1,19,61,886

()] Employee wise details of options granted to:

¢  Key managerial personnel:

8. No. | Name Designation Number of ESOP granted | Exercise Price
1 Rajul Bhargava | CEOQ and Executive Director 6,90,582 As per various ESOP
2 Preeti Singh Company Secretary 54,355 Schemes of the Company

. Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to five percent or more of
options granted during that year: NIL

e Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued
capital {(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grants; NIL

DIRECTORS® AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Board Composition

The composition of the Board was in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”)
and the rules framed thereunder, and as per Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company— Housing Finance
Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bankof India on February 17, 2021, and other
applicable laws (as amended from time to time).
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During the year under review, undermentioned changes took place on the Board of the Company:

S. No. | Name of Directors Capacity Nature of change Effective Date
1 Mr. Rajul Bhargava Executive Director | Appointment April 06, 2023
2 Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza | Director Change in designation (Regularization) June 21, 2023

Director(s) Disclosure:

As per provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on the declarations and confirmations
received, circulars, notifications and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India and other applicable laws, none of
the Directors of the Company were disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the Company.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Comaany (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Housing Finance Companies- Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank)
Directions, 2016, the Company had obtained Fit & Proper declarations and Deed of Covenants and various other
Declarations duly signed by all the Directors of the Company.

Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of a Director, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

The Company shall have such person on the Board who complies with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company and all other statutory provisions and
guidelines as may be applicable from time to time, The Nominations & Remuneration Committee determines individual
remuneration packages for Directors, KMPs and Senior Managements of the Company considering fectors it deems
relevant, including but not limited to market, business performance and practices in comparable compan:es, having due
regard to financial and commercial health of the Company as well as prevailing laws and government/other guidelines.

The aforesaid policy is available on the website of the Company at https://www.dmihousingfinance.in/pc/Nomination-
and-Remuneration-Policy.pdl.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, no such changes took place. However, after March 31, 2024, Ms. Preeti Singh, Company
Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer resigned from the Company with effect from June 20, 2024.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 5 (Five) times during the financial year 2023-24 on below mentioned dates. The imtervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

S. No. Pate of Board Meeting

June 21, 2023
October 06, 2023
January 10, 2024
February 08, 2024
February 29, 2024

Al Bl Ead i e

Further, in accordance with Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standards-1 on “Meetings of the Board of Directors”, the
details on the number of meetings attended by each Director during financial year 2023-2024 is given below:
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5. | Name | Director | Capacity DIN Number of | No. of Remuneration No. of
N of since (i.e. Board other shares
o. | Directo Executive/ Meetings direct held in
rs Non- Het | Attend | orship | Salary and| Sittin | Commissi and
Executive/ d ed s other gFee | on convertib
Chairman compensati le
/ on instrume
Promoter nts held
nominee/ in the
Independe NBFC
nt)
1 Mr. 23/03/20 | Non- 026011 |5 5 6 - - - 93,23,090
Yuvraja | 11 Executive | 79
Chanak Director
va Singh
2 | Mr 23/03/20 | Non- 020234 |5 4 7 - - - 93,23,090
Shivashi | 11 Executive | 60
sh Director
Chatterj '
ee
3 Mr., 18/12/20 | Nominee 018708 |5 4 10 - - -
Gaurav | 17 Director 14
Burman
4 | Mr. 30/05/20 | Non- 001000 | 5 4 3 - Rs. - -
Gurchar | 22 Executive | 11 80,000
an Das Director -
5 Mr, 09/12/20 | Non- 022019 |5 5 3 - Rs. -
Nipenda | 20 Executive | 54 1,60,0
T Director 00
Kochhar
6 Mr. 07/12/20 | Non- 084328 | 5 3 3 - - - -
Alfred 22 Executive | 74
Victor Director
Mendoz
a
7 | Mr, 06/04/20 | CEQO & | 100982 |5 5 - Rs. - - 2.80,549
Rajul 24 Executive | 69 1,36,29,996
Bhargav Director
a
BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has several committees which have been constituted as a part of the best corporate governance practices
and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes. There are 12
Committees constituted by the Board namely Audit Commitiee, Loan Investment and Borrowing Committee, Risk
Management Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Asset Liability Commitiee, Securities Allotment
Committee, Information Technology (‘IT*) Strategy Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, IT
Steering Committee, Business Partner Committee, Identification Committee and Review Committee.

Further, the composition of all the Committees as on March 31, 2024, is provided below. Further, in accordance with
Standard 9 of the Secretarial Standard - 1 on “Meetings of the Board of Directors”, the details on the number and dates
of meetings of the Committees held during the financial year 2023-24, indicating number of meetings attended by each
Committee Member is given below:

» Audit Committee (AC)

The Audit committee is responsible for recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
8
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auditors of the Company, reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, approving the
transactions of the Company with related parties and such other matters as disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Policy of the Company.

Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. on June 19, 2023, October 04, 2023,
Japuary 08, 2024, and February 29, 2024. The attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No. of shares
No. | Directors Committee Committee held in the
since Held Attended Company
| Mr. Gaurav December 18, Director/ Member 4 4 .
Burman 2017
2 Mr. Shivashish | December 18, Director/ Member 4 3 93,23,09)
Chatterjee 2017
3 Mr. Nipendar December 09, Director/ Member 4 4 -
Kochhar 2020
4 Mr. Alfred December 07, Director/ Member 4 4 -
Victor Mendoza | 2022
5 Mr. Yuvraja December 18, Director/ Member 4 4 93,23.090
Chanakva Singh | 2017

> Risk Management Committee (RMC)

The Risk Management Committee adberes to the Risk Management Practices as prescribed, monitors che progress of
the Risk Control Matrix as approved by the Board, monitors the loan portfolio on a regular basis and a’ong with risks
associated with it and establishes standards to mitigate risks related operations, credit, compliance, finance, etc.

Four Risk Management Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. on June 15, 2023, August
i4, 2023, October 04, 2023, and February 29, 2024. The attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No. of shares
No. | Directors Committee Committee held in the
since Held Attended Company
1 Mr. Gaurav December 18, Director/ Member 4 4 -
Burman 2017
2 Mr. Rajul December 18, Member 4 4 2,80,549
Bhargava 2017
3 Mr. Shivashish | December 18, Director/ Member 4 0 93,23,090
Chatterjee 2017
4 Mr, Alfred December 07, Director/ Member 4 0
Victor Mendoza | 2022
5 Mr, Yuvraja December 18, Director/ Member 4 4 93,23,0090
Chanakva Singh | 2017
6 Mr. Prashant December 07, Member 4 4 -
Jha 2022
7 Ms. Poonam December 07, Member 4 4 -
Chauhan 2022
8 Mr. Ankit Jain December 07, Member 4 4
2022
9 tr. Sameer December 07, Member 4 4 -
Mahajan 2022
10 | Preeti Singh December 07, Member 4 2
2022

¥ Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ensures the ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed or existing Directors,
nominates the candidates for appointment on the Board. The committee is also authorised for administration and
superintendence of all Employee Stock Option Schemes and such other matters as required under Companies Act,
2013,

Two Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. April 01,
2023, and June 19, 2023, The attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No. of shares
No. | Directors Committee Committee held in the
since Held Attended Company
1 Mr, Gaurav December 18, Director/ Member 2 2 -
Burman 2017
2 Mr. Shivashish | May 31, 2017 Director/ Member 2 2 93,23,090
Chatterjee
3 Mr. Alfred December 07, Director/ Member 2 2
Victor Mendoza | 2022
4 Mr, Yuvraja May 31, 2017 Director/ Member 2 2 93,23,090
Chanakya Singh

» Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

The Asset Liability Committee attends to aspects relating to Asset Liability Management such as availability of
adequate funding for projected disbursements, monitors the asset liability gap and strategize action to mitigate the risk
associated, understands fund-raising requirements and advising the best instruments to be used for the same, ensures
that the finance costs are managed in an efficient and effective manner and advises on utilization of excess funds
available with the Company.

Five ALCO Committee meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. on June 15, 2023, September 18,

2023, November 04, 2023, January 07, 2024, and March 28, 2024. The attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No. of shares
No. | Directors Committee Commitiee hetd in the
since Held Attended Company
1 Mr. Gauray December 18, Director/ Member 5 5 -
Burman 2017
2 Mr, Rajul March 09, 2022 | Member 5 5 2,80,549
Bhargava
3 Mr. Shivashish | January 14, Director/ Member 5 5 93,23,090
Chatterjee 2014
4 Mr. Yuvraja January 14, Director/ Member 5 5 93,23,090
Chanakya Singh | 2014
5 Mr. Vivek August 14, Member 4 4 2t
Wadhera 2023
6 Mr. Prateek March 09,2022 | Member 5 5 -
Kapoor
7 Mr, Alfred December 07, Director/ Member 5 5 -
Victor Mendoza | 2022
8 Mr. Saurabh March (9, 2022 | Member 5 5 -
Nigam
9 Ms. Preeti February 23, Member 5 0 =
Singh 2023

¥ Security Allotment Committee

The Securities Allotment Committee is authorized to consider and transact the matter of raising of funds up to the limit
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specified by the Board and to exercise powers on behalf of the Board to look after the matters pertaining to issue, offer,
allotment, cancellation and transfer of securities.

One Securities Allotment Committee Meetings was held during the financial year 2023-24 on August 14, 2023, The

attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the | No. of shares
No. | Directors Committee Committee " held in the
since Held Attended Company
| Me. Alfred December 07, Director/ Member 1 1 -
Victor Mendoza | 2022
2 Mr. Gaurav December 18, Director/ Member 1 1 -
Burman 2017
3 Mr. Jatinder December 18, Member 1 1
Bhasin 2007
4 Mr. Shivashish | December 18, Director/ Member 1 1 93,23,090
Chatterjee 2017
5 Mr. Sahib December 18, Member 1 1 08,132
Pahwa 2017
6 Mr, Yuvraja December 18, Director/ Member 1 1 93,23,090
Chanakya Singh | 2017 |

»  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee formulates and recommends to the Board the CSR policy for the
Company and annual actien plans in pursuance of its CSR policy. The committee also recommends the manner of
execution of CSR projects or programmes and monitors and report regarding the same.

Two Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 on
June 19, 2023, and February 29, 2024, The attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No. of shares
No. | Directors Commitiee Committee held in the
since Held Attended Company
l Mr. Gauray September 11, Director/ Member 2 2 -
Burman 2019
2 Mr. Shivashish | September 11, Directot/ Member 2 2 93,23.090
Chatterjee 2019
3 Mr. Alfred December 07, Director/ Member 2 2 -
Victor Mendoza | 2022
4 Mr. Yuvraja September 11, Director/ Member 2 2 93,23,090
Chanakya Singh | 2019

» IT Strategy Committee

The IT Strategy committee is authorised to approve IT strategy and policy documents, ensure IT investments represent
a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are acceptable monitoring the method the IT resources needed to
achieve strategic goals and provide high level direction and such other matters as disclosed in the corporate governance

policy.

Two IT Strategy Committee meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. on April 01, 2023, and

September 18, 2023. The attendance of the members is as follows:

S.

No.

Name of
Directors

Member of
Committee
since

Capacity

Number of Meetings of the
Committee

No. of shares
held in the

Held [ Attended

Company
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1 Mr. Alfred December 07, Director/ Member 2 2
Victor Mendoza | 2022

2 Mr, Jatinder May 24, 2019 Member 2 2
Bhasin

3 Mr. Rajul May 24, 2019 Member 2 2 2,80,549
Bhargava

4 Mr. Saurabh May 24, 2019 Member 2 2 -
Nigam

5 Mr. Devendra May 24, 2019 Member 2 2
Sharma

6 Mr. Manish May 24, 2019 Member 2 2 -
Srivastava

7 Mr. Manikant May 24, 2019 Member 2 2 -
R. Singh

8 Mr, Shivashish | May 24, 2019 Director/ Member 2 1 93,23,090
Chatterjee

9 Mr. Yuvraja May 24, 2019 Director/ Member 2 2 93,23,090
Chanakya Singh

» IT Steering Committee

The IT Steering Committee shall provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the project, including deliverables
to be realized at each phase of the project and milestones to be reached accordingto the project timetable.

Two IT Steering Committee meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. on September 18, 2023, and
March 01, 2024, The attendance of the members is as follows:

8. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No. of shares
No. | Directors Committee Commitiee held in the
since Held Attended Company
1 Mr. Rajul October (9, Member 2 2 2,80,549
Bhargava 2021
2 Mr. Amber Qctober 09, Member 2 2 -
Gautam 2021
3 Mr. Shivashish | October 09, Director/ Member 2 0 93,23,000
Chatterjee 2021
4 Mr. Devendra October 09, Member 2 2 -
Sharma 2021
5 Mr. Yuvraja October 09, Director/ Member 2 2 93,23.090
Chanakva Singh | 2021
6 Ms. Preeti December 07, Member 2 0
Singh 2022

» Loan Investment and Borrowing Committee

The Loan Investment and Borrowing Committee approves all borrowings and investments under such terms and
conditions as the management may deem fit within the limits as approved by the Board and Shareholders.

Ten Loan Investment and Borrowing Committee meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. on May
31, 2023, August 05, 2023, August 31, 2023, September 11, 2023, September 30, 2023, December 11, 2023, February
05, 2024, February 16, 2024, February 24, 2024 and March 20, 2024. The attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the . No. of shares
No, | Directors Committee Committee held in the
since Held Attended Conmpany
1 Mr. Gaurav December 18, Director/ Member 10 8 -
Burman 2017
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2 M. Jatinder December 18, | Member 10 10
Bhasin 2017

3 Mt. Shivashish | December 18, | Director/ Member 10 4 93,23,090
Chatterjee 2017

4 Mr. Preeti June 21, 2023 Member 10 0 -
Singh

5 Mr. Alfied December (7, Director/ Member 10 5 2
Victor Mendoza | 2022

6 Mr, Yuvraja December 18, | Director/ Member 10 10 93,23,090
Chanakya Singh | 2017

¥» Business Partner Committee

The Business Partner committee is authorized for reviewing, approving and executing the Securitization and Transfer
of Loan Exposure transactions and such other purposes as may be mutually agreed upen.

Fourteen Business Pariner Committee meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 viz. on April 19, 2023,
May 29, 2023, August 07, 2023, August 10, 2023, August 29, 2023, September 15, 2023, November 30, 2023,
December 26, 2023, February 08, 2024, February 20, 2024, March 26, 2024, March 28, 2024, March 29, 2024, and

March 30, 2024. The attendance of the members is as follows:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No. of shares
No. | Directors Committee Committee held in the
since Held Attended Company
1 Mr. Rajul September 30, Member 14 14 2,380,549
Bhargava 2022
2 Ms, Poonam September 30, Member 14 14 -
Chauhan 2022
3 Mr, Amber September 30, Member 14 14
Gautam 2022
4 Mr. Ankit Jain September 30, Member 14 14 -
2022
5 Mr. Prashant September 30, Member 14 14 -
Jha 2022
G Mr. Sameer September 30, Member 14 14
Mahajan 2022

¥ Identification Committee

The Identification committee is authorised to make changes to the constitution of the Committee as and when required
and take any other steps in connection with the proper functioning of the Committee.

No Identification Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24,
> Review Committee

The Review commitiee reviews the cases identified by the Identification Committee on Wilful defaulters for further
action.

No Review Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24.
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General Meetings:
5. No. | Type of Meeting Date/Place Special Resolutions passed
1 Annual General Meeting | June 21, 2023, - Issuance of converiible share waranis on
Express Building, 03rd Floor, preferential allotment to the identified employees
9-1¢ Bahadur Shah Zafar of the group Company.
Marg, New Delhi-110002 - Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Alfred
Victor Mendoza (DIN: 08432874) as Director of
the Company.
HUMAN RESQURCE

The Company always strives to employ highly talented people who are fully engaged in our business and who deliver
high levels of performance at work, The Human Resource continues to support the business in achieving sustainable
and responsible growth by building the right capabilities in the organization, It continues to focus on progressive
employee relations, creating an inclusive work culture and a strong talent pipeline. The Company firmly believes that
employee motivation, development and engagement are key aspects of good human resource management,

During the financial vear ended March 2024, the Company had hired experienced and efficient employees from the
industry, so that they can help in achieving the Company’s goal. The details of increase of number of employees are
given below:

Financial Year Number of employees
On March 31, 2024 411
On March 31, 2023 386

Also, the Company continues to take efforts to offer professional growth opportunities and recognitions while continuing
to impart and organize various fraining programs at Head office and branch level to educate and train the employees
on the products, Know Your Customer (‘KYC’), Anti Money Laundering (* AML’) norms and Policies, of the Company.
SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate Company as on March 31, 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, had issued Secretarial Standards on Board and General
meetings. The Company had complied with all the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND REGULATORY CHANGES

Deposits
The Company is a Non-Deposit Accepting Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank.

Pursuant to the Master Direction — Nen-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India on February 17, 2021 (“RBI MasterDirections”), and various
Circulars issued by the National Housing Bank and the Reserve Bank of India from time to time, the Board of Directors
of the Company had passed a resolution on April 12, 2023 confirming that the Company would neither hold nor accept
any ‘Public deposits’ as defined under RBI Regulations during the period commencing from April 01, 2023 to March
31, 2024.
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Statutory and Regulatory Compliance

The Company had complied with the applicable statutory provisions, including those of the Companies Act, 2013, and
the Income-tax Act, 1961. Further, the Company had complied with the NHB’s Housing Finance Companies Directions,
2010 (and such other guidelines, notifications, circulars issued from time to time) till in force and thereafter, complied
with Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021 introduced on February 17, 2021.

Further, the Company had effectively complied with all the RBI Notifications, Guidelines, Circulars and Ddirections as
may be applicable to HFCs, Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI),
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), Anti-Money Laundering
Guidelines and such other applicable Labour Laws.

Statutory Disclosure by Directors

None of the Directors of the Company were disqualified as per provision of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act,
2013, The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures, as required under various provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Others

As per the Master Circular — Returns to be submitted by Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) dated December 21,
2021, REBI has introduced new return formats to be submitted to NHB and had revised the timelines of submission of
selective returns, The Company ensured the timely compliance of the requirements mentioned in the said master

circular.

FAIR PRACTICE CODE, KYC NORMS AND ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING STANDARDS

The Company continued to ensure that Fair Practice Code, KYC Norms and Anti Money Laundering (AML) Standards
as per the guidelines issued by the NHB/RBI from time to time were invariably adhered to and duly complied by the
Company. The Company has put in place a Board approved robust KYC & AML policy for compliance by the branches.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTING

There were no fraud cases detected which was required to be reported during the year under review, as per the
provisions of Section 134 (3) (ca), read with Section 143 {12) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the regulatory authorities.
Also, there were no frauds detected during the financial year under review as per applicable
Directions/Guidelines/Notifications/Circulars issued by the National Housing Bank/ Reserve Bank of India.

However, the Company had reported the details of the fraud cases outstanding to the Audit Commitiee/Board on a
quarterly and annual basis. Further, the details of the same had also been submitted to the National Housing
Bank/Reserve Bank of India in the applicable formats at defined periodicity for submission.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules 2014, the Company had established a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The CSR
Committee had formulated and recommended to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by
the Company, which had been approved by the Board and the same had been put up on the Company’s website and
available at the link: https://www.dmihousingfinance.in/pdff/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf.

The CSR Policy was adopted in September 2019 by the Company with the aim of contributing to the social and
economic development of the community in which the Company operates. It also talks out the prescribed activities out
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of which the Company may opt to undertake and provides for modalities of execution of the projects undertaken,
affixation of CSR budget and provides for mechanism for monitoring and reporting of the CSR activities undertaken.

During the year under review, the CSR Policy of the Company was reviewed in light of various amendments in the
applicable rules and regulations and was placed on the website of the Company.

For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company was required to spend Rs. 72,44,770/- under CSR for financial year
2023-24 as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company had duly spent the required CSR
expenditure of an amount of Rs. 72,44,770/- towards various CSR projects and causes.

The statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee, in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, in the form of the Annual Report on CSR
Activities is laid down in Annexure-A which forms part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company, being a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank (NHB) primarily
engaged in the business of providing Housing Loans is exempted from provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”). Accordingly, there are no details of particulars of loans, guarantees or investments that were required
to be provided as per Section 134(3) (g) of the Act.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder, all related party transactions
entered during FY 23-24 were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of the business.

The details as required to be provided under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in Form AQC-
2 is attached as Annexure-B to this report.

Further, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Master Direction — Non- Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 infroduced on February 17, 2021
(“RB{ Directions”), (as amended from time fo fime), the Company had put in place a Board approved Related Party
Transaction Policy (“RPT Policy”) for the purpose of obtaining requisite approval and reporting transactions with
related parties.

The Policy can be accessed on the Company’s website at the Jink: https://www.dmihousingfinance.in/pdf/DMI-HFC-
Related-Party-Transaction-Policy-2810.pdf

A list of all the Related Party Transactions was placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Further, the details of
Related Party transaction in compliance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013, and said RBI Directions were
dieclosed in the notes forming part of the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In accordance with Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 introduced on Febrary 17, 2021 (as amended from time to time} and the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has Board approved Risk Management Policy, The Board constituted the Risk Management Committee and
Audit Committee responsible for monitoring the progress of the Risk Control Matrix and loan portfolio and to establish
standards to mitigate risks related to operations, credit, compliance, finance,

Development and implementation of Risk Control Matrix (RCM)

The key components of an organization’s risk management framework are the Risk Centrol Matrix (‘RCM’) which
systematically captures key risks (operational, regulatory and financial) and mitigating internal controls. It enables

16



i DMI HOUSING FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Annual Report-2023-24

assessment of key controls through testing of data pertaining to each control - control description, financial statement
assertions, test procedures and management action plans, etc. Backward integration of RCMs with existing risk-control
assurance platforms would assist in addressing key requirements of Internal Financial Controls (‘IFC’), under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Key benefits of RCM

Structured and consistent process for management of risk and controls.

Demonstrates organization’s ability to manage / mitigate risk in a comprehensive and timely manner. Strengthen
Intermal control/system reliance to ensure controls are adecquate against all the risks involved.

Fostering formalized, uniform, well controlled and efficient operating processes within the organization.

Increase system efficiency and its ability to support and make quick decisions to help the organization move at speed
with the regulatory and other requirements.

Key Activities - Strengthening the Risk Control Matrices

PPreparation / Updation of RCMs for key businesses and support functions:

Updating of risks and controls implemented withing key processes through testing and gap assessment Mapping
controls to financial statement assertions and identify frequency of controls.

Testing of RCMs and integration with Internal Audit (‘TA’)

Testing of RCMs is performed based on IFC guidelines wherein all the identified risks are categorized as ‘key” or
‘non-key’.

Reporting to Audit Comumittee

Reporting on controls testing (including high level view of key risks and controls) to be combined as part of 1A
reporting to Audit Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an Internal Control System in place, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations.
The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is well defined in the Internal Audit Manual, The Company has
appointed an Internal Auditor to manage the Internal Audits of the Company. The Audit Committee has the responsibility
for establishing the audit objectives and determining the nature, t|m|ng and extent of audit procedures as well as the locations
where the work needs to be carried out.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy & adequacy of Internal Financial Controls & Internal Control
system in the Company to mitigate the risks faced by the organization and thereby achieve its business objective.

Broadly the objectives are: -

a 9 & &

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls through Internal Audit Policy,
Review the operation of the Control Supervisory Mechanisms;
Recommend improvements in processes and procedures;

Surface significant observations and recommendations for process improvement and financial leakages in a concise
report for discussion with senior management;

Review the compliance with operating systemns, accounting procedures and policies.

Based on the report of the Internal Audit department, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas
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and thereby strengthen the internal controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to
the Audit Committee.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS ORTRIBUNALS

On June 06, 2022, the Company made an application to the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT™) for reduction
of share capital under Section 66 of Companies Act, 2013. In the said matter, the Hon'ble NCLT, New Delhi bench had
delivered its order dated January 30, 2024. Accordingly, the Company’s capital was reduced by cancelling and
extinguishing uncalled and unpaid part of the capital issued to Shivashish Chatterjee & Yuvraja Chanakya Singh on
behalf of K2VZ Partnership Firm.

Capital Structure of the Company after NCLT approval as on March 31, 2024
Particulars No, of shares | Issued and | Paid Up Capital
issued Subscribed capital

Fully paid-up | 48,62,27,146 INR 4,86,22,71,460 INR 4,86,22,71,460
equity shares

Further, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

APPROVALS RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY

Under Section 42D (1} of the Insurance Act, 1938, the Insurance Regulatory and Development Anthority of India
{“*IRDAT”) granted certificate of registration to DMI Housing Finance Private Limited to act as Corporate Agent
(Composite} on March 01, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

During the financial year 2023-24, there were no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER IBC, 2016
During the Financial year under review and in accordance with Rule 8 of Companies (Account of Companies) Rules,
2014, no applications had been made and no proceedings are pending against the Company under the Insolvency and

Bankruptcy Code, 2016,

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company to the best of their
knowledge and.ability, confirms that-

a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period.

¢} they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

¢) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
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systems are adequate and operating effectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read w:th Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption are not required o be furnished
considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company during the year under review.

The details of foreign exchange expenditure incurred during the year under review are as below:
(vliliiom)
[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

L - -

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company was committed to create a safe and healthy work environment that enables its employees to work without
fear of prejudice, gender bias and sexual harassment. The Company had in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy
(Policy) in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act”). The Company believes that sexual harassment at the workplace, if involving
employees of the Company, shall be considered a grave offence and was therefore punishable under the provisions of
the Act. For this purpose, an Interal Complaints Committee (ICC) had been set-up to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment.

The provisions of this policy are applicable to:

All employees of the Company, regardless of the nature of their contract, duration of employment orposition in the
organization.

Associates of the Company whether full-time, part-time, temporary, voluntary, contracted, or casualincluding
researchers, trainees, and consultants.

Volunteers and interns, during their association with the organization.

Partners, clients, service providers and users of the services of the Company.,

Acknowledgment of Policy is taken from all the employees.

All complaints of sexual harassment against employees are taken seriously and dealt with promptly. Al) investigations
are conducted thoroughly and professionally, and accurate records of the investigation and the findings are properly
maintained, Further, any employee who brings forward the charges of any instance of sexual harassment does not face
any retaliation, The Company makes sure that anyone violating this policy is subjected to disciplinary action.

Further, one complaint was received, investigated and closed under POSH during the year ended March 31, 2024.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Y our directors place on records their appreciation for the significant contribution made by all employees, who through
their competence, dedication, hard work, co-operation, and support enabled the Company to achieve new milestones
on a continual basis.

In terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Rermuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
employees of the Company had been provided at Annexure C to this Board’s Report. However, as per first proviso to
Section 136(1) of the Act and second proviso of Rule 5(2) of the Rules, the Report and Financial Statements are being
sent to the Members of the Company excluding the statement of particulars of employees under Rule 5(2) of the Rules.
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The details were also available at the registered office of the Company, any member desirous of obtaining the same
shall contact the Company Secretary during business hours on working days.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

In terms of the requirement of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting of Board
and its Power) Rules, 2014, the Company had formulated a codified vigil mechanism for their Directors and Employees
to report their genuine concerns or grievances about unethical and improper practices or any other wrongful conduct
in the Company, without fear of punishment, victimization or unfair treatment.

The vigil mechanism provided adequate safeguards against victimization of Employees and Directors who avail of the
vigil mechanism and provide direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or eéxceptional
cases. Also, the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company had been put upon the Company’s website and available at the
link:https:/www.dmihousingfinance.in/pdf/DMI-HFC-Vigil-Mechanism-and-Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf.

During the year, no complaint was received under the Whistle Blower mechanism and the same was reported to the
Audit Committee Meeting.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In line with the RBI Guidelines, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee at its
meeting held on November 26, 2021, approved appointment of M/s. Agiwal and Associates (Firm Registration No,
000181N) as Statuiory Auditors of the Company for a consecutive period of three years to conduct audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24. The said appointment was also
approved by the shareholders.

The audit report by M/s Agiwal and Associates for FY 2023-24 is unmodified, i.e., it does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Further, in line with the RBI Guidelines, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
at its meeting held on June 20, 2024, approved appointment of M/s. Mercurius & Associates LLP (Firm Registration
Number -021893N/N500033) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a consecutive period of three years. At the
ensuing AGM, approval of the members is being sought for their appointment as Statutory Auditor for term of three
years from the conclusion of the 13th AGM till the conclusion of the 16th AGM to audit the accounts of the Company
i.e., for the financial year ending 31 March 2025, 31 March 2026 and 31 March 2027.

AUDITOR’S OBSERVATION

The Audit Report by Statutory Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2024, is unmodified, i.e., it does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

However, the Auditors had mentioned a factual statement in the audited financial statements of the Company for the
period ended March 31, 2024, pertaining to the implementation of the audit trail feature pursuant to which the Company
is required to utilize accounting software that has the feature of audit trail (edit log) for maintaining its books of
accounts. It was highlighted that the same was not enabled for the year and is currently under the process and will be
enabled in the upcoming financial year.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with corresponding rules framed thereunder,
the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s VLA & Associates, Company Secretaries as the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ending March 31, 2024, The Secretarial
Audit Report given by the secretarial auditor in requisite form MR-3 is annexed to this Report as Annexure-D.
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The Auditors’ Report was self-explanatory and has no qualification or adverse remarks.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Since the Company is into housing finance, the Company was not required to maintain cost records as specified by the
Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Even though operations of the Company were not energy intensive, the management had been highly conscious of the
importance of conservation of energy and technology absorption at all operational levels and efforts aze made in this
direction on a continuous basis. In view of the nature of activities which were being carried on by the Company, the
particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are not applicable to the
Company and hence not been provided.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

No such valuation or one-time settlement was done during the year as the Company do not obtain loans from banks/
financial institutions against property.

ANNUAL RETURN

The copy of Annual Return for Financial Year 2023-24, which will be filed with the Registrar of Company, will be
hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at hitps://www.dmihousingfinance.in/policy.php in
accordance with provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
therein.

DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company had complied with all the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and there were no default in
compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to compliance with accounting and
secretarial standards.

DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES

No penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank of India or any other stautory
authority.

BREACH OF COVENANT
There were no instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued.

DIVERGENCE IN ASSET CLASSIFICATION AND PROVISIONING

There has been no divergence in asset classification and provisioning requirement as assessed by NHB during the year
ended March 31, 2024.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and assistance received
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from the Bankers, Regulatory Bodies, Stakeholders including Financial Institutions, Distributors and other business
associates who have extended their valuable sustained support and encouragement during the year under review,

Further, the Board takes this opportunity to recognize and place on record their gratitude and appreciation for the
commitment displayed by all Executives, officers and staff at all levels of the Company. We look forward to your
continued support in the future.

By order of the Board of Directors
For DMI Housi Fmance Private Limited
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Annexure-A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
(For Financial Year commencing from April 01, 2023, to March 31, 2024)

The Company on September 11, 2019, constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR} pursuant to the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, Futther, the Company also has in place a duly approved Corporate Social Responsibility Policy formulated
as per the prescribed provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder as amended from time to time.

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR. policy and projects or programs:

The Company had adopted CSR Policy which aims at supplementing the role of government in enhancing the welfare
measures for the underprivileged communities. In order to fulfill and enhance its CSR responsibilities. The Company
will distribute its CSR efforts in accordance with the provisions of the companies Act 2013, and thus. announce the
following themes:

Olympic Sports;
Nutrition; and

Education and Vocational Training.

The composition of CSR Committee:

S. No [Name of Director Designation / Nature Number of |Number of
of meetings of CSR [meetings attended
Directorship Commiittee held [during the year
during the year
l. Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza  [Director 2 2
2. Mr. Gaurav Burman Director 2 2
3. Mr, Shivashish Chatierjee Director 2 2
4. Mr, Yuvraja Chanakya Singh [Director 2 p]

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the boardare disclosed on
the website of the Company at https://swww.dmihousingfinance.in/pdf/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policv.pdf

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable(attach the
report): NOT APPLICABLE

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies(Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

S. Financial Year Amount available for I;‘equired tobe
No set-off from preceding financial etoff for the financial year,
years (inRs) if any (in Rs)

Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(8): INR 30,63,45,401.30/-

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): INR 72,44,770/-
(b)Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previons financial years: Nil
23
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(¢} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢): INR 72,44,770/-

{a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (In Rs.)

Spent forthe Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specifiedunder

Financial to Unspent CSR Account Schedule VII as per second proviso to

Year {in Rs.) as per Section 135(5)

Section 135(6)
Amount Date Transfer Name Fund Amount Date of Transfer
0f Of

INR 72,44,770/- Nil [Nil [Nil Nil Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(LK) 3 @5 O o N T ) (10) an
S. NoName of |[tem |Local [Location oflProject |Amoun Amoun Amount [Mode Mode
the from |Area [the ProjectiDuratioft tspent (transfered of
[Project [the list |(Yes/Noj(State/Distrin allocated(in the |to Unspent|f Implementation-
o) ct) for the [current/CSR Im plementat Through
f project financi [Account ion- Direct (Implementing
activitie (in Rs.).[alyear [for the |[(Yes/No) |Agency (Nameand
§ in (in Rs.} project as CSR RegNo.)
Schedul per
e VII Section
t 135(6) {in
othe Rs.).
Act,
INIL [NIL NIL NIL  [NIL INIL NIL NIE  NIL L NIL
(¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
D) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S.no.Name of [tem from (Local Are| Location of Amount [Vlode of Mode of
The Project |the listof | (Yes/No) |the Project{Spent [mplementati Implementation
activities in| (State/District(for the on -Through Implementing
Schedule t) preject (in |-Direct Agency (Name
VII to the Rs.). (Yes/No) and CSR RegNo.)
Act.

1. |Foundation Olympic Yes Multiple  [30,00,000 [Yes Foundation for Promotion
promotion of  [Sports districts, PAN of Sports and Games- Reg,.
Sports and India No.- CSR0O0001100
Games

2. [SPIC Macay  [Promotion Yes In Schools  [10,00,000 [Yes SPIC MACAY - Reg. No.-

of  Indian) Across India CSR00014494
Classical

Music  and

Culture

amongst
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Youth and to
learn,
participate
and
exchange
ideas about|
lart and
music

3. |Fatima Hospital

Healthcare

No Gorakhpur,
Uttar Pradesh

10,744,770 |Yes Fatima Hespital Reg. No.

CSR00004311

4. |Indian Institute
of Technology
Roorkee

Education

No Uttar Pradesh

21,70,000 [Yes [IT Roorkee Reg. No.

CSRO0003687

(d) Amount Spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8¢+8d+8e): INR 72,44,770/-
{g)Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

S. No Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per INR 72,44,770/-
Section 135(5)
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year INR 72.44,770/-
(iii Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] INA
iv) Surplus arising cut of the CSR projects or programmes or  [NA
activities of theprevious financial vears, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years NA-
[(iii)-(iv}]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S.no. |Preceding |[Amount Amount spent |Amount transferred to any fund Amount
Financial transferred [in the reporting [specified underSchedule VII as per [remaining to
Year to Financial Year [Section 135(6), if any. bespent in

Unspent (inRs.). succeeding
CSR financial
Account years. (In
under Rs.)
Section 135
(6) {in Rs.)
Name of |Amount (in [Date
Fund RS.) o
f
Transfer
Nil [Nil Nil Nil Nil Nl fNil Nil
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(2 (3) () (5 (6) (D (3) (9)
S.no. [ProjectID [Name of the [Financial |Project [Total Amount  (Cumulative[Status of
Project Year in Duration [Amount Spent for amount the
which the Allocated  |the project spent at the project -
project was for the [n end of Complet
ed/
Commence project (in[reporting |reporting Ongoing.
(cd
Rs.}. Financial [Financial
year {in Year. (In
Rs.). Rs.)
Nil Nil Nil Nil INil N1l Nil Nil N1l

. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): NOT APPLICABLE

{(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their
address etc.

(d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of thecapital
asset).

. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section
135(5): NA

Further, in terms of the amended CSR Rules, the Director of the Company has certified that the funds disbursed have
been utilized for the purpose and in the manner approved by the Board and Committee for FY 2024,

By order of the Board of Directors
For DMI Housing\Finance Private Limited J{g\

A ' ' /’T) 09 O*N P
Mr. Yijvraja Chanakya Singh el i) S R} .,Rﬂ/ulBhargava

Director Executive Director and CEQ
DIN: 02601179 DIN: 10098269

Address: 46, 2™ Floor, Jor Bagh Address: P-1201 Sispal Vihar, AWHO Society,
New Delhi- 110003 Sector-49, Gurgaon-122018
Place: N Vevk Place: NMeww Deldag

Date:  Joue %0, 2oZ M Date:  Juune 2o, 202y
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Annexure-B

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies{Accounts) Rules,

2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred
to in sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third

proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
Nil, as the Company has not entered into any contract, arrangement or transaction which is not at arm’s hghbasis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s Iength basis:

(a) Name(s)of| (b) Nature of | (¢} Duration |(d) Salient (e) () date(s)of | (g) Amount paid
the contracts/arran of the terms  of the|Justification n| approval by as
rélated party| gements/ contracts contracts or for the | advances,if any:
and| transactions / |arrangements or | entering into | Board or
nature of arrange transactions such | Commitiee
relationship ments/t includingthe | contracts or
transaction value, if any: |arrangements
or
transaction
s
DMI FinanceCost  SharingFinancial yearTotal Cost sharing June 21,2023 |NA
Private Arrangement  [2023-24 budget -
Limited 7,23,39.874

By order of the Board of Directors
For DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

) /5
Mr. Yilvraja Cha a/l‘i;:fingh L(L
Pirector '\\—_-

DIN: 02601179
Address: 46, 2" Floor, Jor Bagh
New Delhi- 110003

Place: Newss kfwk
Date: qu,u\c %} 2004

Executilve Director and CEO
DIN: 10098269

Address: P-1201 Sispal Vihar, AWHO Seciety,
Sector-49, Gurgaon-122018

Place: N ouw bcﬂ'L‘J
Date: e 1o, 207\
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Your Trusted Advisor

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31** MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited
Express Building, 3" Floor 9-10,
Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,

New Delhi - 110002

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by DMI Housing Finance Private Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, 1 hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has. during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31%* March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 3 1% March, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) except External
Commercial Borrowings (ECB) and Overseas Direct Investment (ODI);

"\© '354, Third Floor, Aggarwal Nillennium Tower 1,.Tower B, Netaji Subhash'Place, New:Delhi-1 10034
0 +91-9990665208, 7291038015 (O) Q\\.J+9‘I-11-41650155
B info@vlaassociates.com / vlaassociate@gmail.com / vlocconsultant@gmail.com




v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015- Not applicable during the audit period under
review;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not applicable during the audit period under
review;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015- Not applicable during the audit period under review;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018,- Not applicable during the audit period under
review;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not applicable during the audit period under
review;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;- Not applicable during the audit period under
review;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;- Not applicable during the audit period under review;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021- Not applicable during the audit period under review; and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 - Not applicable during the audit period under review.

vi.  Other laws as applicable specifically to the Company:

a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules, regulations & directions issued
' from time to time;

b. National Housing Bank Act, 1987;

c. Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021;

d. RBI Magter Directions as applicable to Housing Finance Companies; and

e. National Housing Bank circulars, notifications & guidelines as applicable to
the Company.

© 354, Third Floor, Aggarwal Millennium Tower' 1, Tower B, Netaji Subhash Place, New Delhi-110034
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[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) The Secretarial Standards on Board meetings (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on
General Meetings (SS-II), as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the above referred Act, Rules.
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors. There was change in the composition of the Board of Directors
during the year under the review as follows:

1. On 06™ April. 2023, Mr. Rajul Bhargava (DIN: 10098269) was appointed as the Executive

Director of the Company.
2. On 21% June, 2023, there was change in designation of Mr. Alfred Victor Mendoza (DIN:

08432874) from additional director to Director of the Company.

Adequate notices, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings in compliance with the provisions of the Act, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The resolutions were passed at all the meetings by the requisite majority and there were no
instances of the dissent which were required to be captured and recorded as part of the

minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Further I report that during the audit period, the Company has taken the following major
decisions:

Pursuant to NCLT's order dated 30™ January, 2024 the company’s capital was reduced by
cancelling and extinguishing uncalled and unpaid part of the capital issued to Shivashish
Chatterjee & Yuvraja Chanakya Singh on behalf of K2VZ Partnership Firm. Accordingly,
4,94.90,900 number of partly paid-up equity shares issued to Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee &
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh on behalf of K2VZ Partnership Firm was reduced to
13,70,57! number of fully paid-up equity shares.

0 +91-9990665208, 7291038015 (O) §, +91-11-41650155
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S. | Date of | Type of issue | Type of | No of | Face Premium

No | allotment security security | value (In Rs.)
. allotted | (In Rs.)
1. |22 Private Non-Convertible 5.000 1,00,000 -
January, placement Debentures
2024
2, |220 Allotment of | Equity Share 64,989 10 0.68
December, | Equity Shares 19,718 10 0.72
2024 on exercise 19,287 10 0.94
of ESOP 9,276 10 19.61
434 10 22.30
3. |20 Allotment  of | Equity Shares 32823 10 1.24
November, | Equity Shares
2023 on exercise 11,542 g 18,30
of convertible 6,892 10 19.30
share warrants
46,875 10 22.30
4. [ 19" May, | Allotment of | Equity Shares 10,411 10 19.30
2023 Equity Shares
on exercise
of convertible 7,004 10 22.30
: share warrants
5. | 16t Private Non-Convertible 7,500 1,00,000 =
February, | Placement Debentures
2024
6. |26t Private Non-Convertible 9,430 1,00,000 -
February, Placement Debentures '
2024
7. | 15" March, | Private Non-Convertible 12,599 1,00,000 -
2024 Placement Debentures

For VLA & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

\ested & l\%%mﬁp

Vishal Lochan Aggr:r((!val

(Proprietor)

FCS No.: 7241

Place: New Delhi C P No.: 7622
Date: 20" June, 2024 UDIN: FOO}Z“”FOODSW 60%

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-1” and
forms an integral part of this report.

© 354, Third Floor, Aggarwal Millennium Tower 1, Tower B, Netaji Subhash Pla¢e/New Defhi-110034: "<
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Annexure-1

To,

The Members,

DMI Housing Finance Private Limited
Express Building, 3" Floor, 9-10,
Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,

New Delhi — 110002

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Management's Responsibility:-

1. Maintenance of secretarial records and other records under the scope/ambit of
Secretarial Audit (hereinafter called ‘Record’) is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on
my audit.

2. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Auditor's Responsibility:-
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and

procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. |
have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

5. Wherever required. 1 have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer:-

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For VLA & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

\‘CSMLQ;GWMB

Vishal Lochan Aggz;r!val
(Proprietor)

FCS No.: 7241

Place: New Delhi C P No.: 7622
Date: 20" June, 2024 UDIN: F 06724F 00p 847608

. T . . - . e Y g B T T T Y o O R £
© 354, Third Floor, Aggarwal Millennium Tower 1, Tower B, Netaji Subhash Place, NerDelhi-110034 ", &%
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D-6/9, Upper Ground Flgor, Rana Pratap Bagh, Delhi-110007 (INDIA
Phone : 011-41011281, 43512990 E-mail : caagiwal68@gmail.com, oﬂioe@gagiwal)associatas.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of DMI Housing Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DMI Housing Finance Private Limited {“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended {“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its orofit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opirion on the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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The Director’s report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financfal Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5} of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pasition,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterents can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
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reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
repart. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, ang to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of secticn 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph (i) vi
below on reporting under Rule 11{g};
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(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Repart are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the afaresaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” 1o this report;

{g) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b} above on reporting under Section 143(3){b} and paragraph (i) vi
below on reporting under Rule 11{g};

{h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2024;

(i} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditos’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the nvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 45 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”}
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 45 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
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Company from any person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢} Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 1o believe
that the representations under sub-clause {a) and {b) contain any material misstatement,

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility,
however the same was not enabled for the year. Consequently, we are unable to comment on the
operating effectiveness of the audit trail facility.

For Agiwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Eirn Registration Number:000181N
P = o L W ==

C _ L 1-_'1 | [__' "zv"’ :

per P.C. Agiwal

Partner

Membership Number: 080475
UDIN: 24080475BKFKYZ5934
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 20, 2024
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report
of even date

Re: DMI Housing Finance Private Limited {‘the Company’}

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i1 (a} (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(e} There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of 8enami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) {a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{h) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
from banks or financial institutions. However, such loans are secured by way of negative lien over
assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{ii)(b} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i} (a}  The Company's principal business is to give loans and is a registered HFC, accordingly, reporting
under clause {ii){a} is not applicable..

{b)  During the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of alt loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

{c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, granted by the Company as part of its

business of providing loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated by the Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not

(67
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practicable to furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date for repayment or receipt and the
extent of delay (as suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India for reporting under this clause) in this Annexure 1, in respect of loans
and advances which were not repaid / paid when they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay,
in the normal course of lending business.

Further, except for those instances where there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal and
/ or interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset
classification in note 5 to the financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the parties are repaying the principal
amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable

{d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than
ninety days as at March 31, 2024 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in note
S to the financial statements. In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by
the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

(e)  The company's principal business is to give loans and is a registered HFC, accordingly, reporting
under clause (iii}(e) is not applicable.

{f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii){f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3{iv) of the Qrder is nat applicable to the Company.

{v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement ta report on clause
3{v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi) The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii{{a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable
to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

L
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{b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service lax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have
not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the | Amount {Rs) Period to which | Forum where the
statute dues the amount | dispute is
relates pending
Goods and | GST Demand 43,25,480 FY 2017-18 GST Appeals
Services Tax Act

Note: During the vear, the Company has deposited Rs 2,06,000 under protest in connection with a
dispute with GST authorities for the FY 2017-18,

{viii}  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix}{a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(ix){b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

{ix){c) Monies raised during the year by the Company by way of term loans has been applied for the purpose
for which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds.

{ix)(d)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix}{{e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3{ix){e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

()(f} The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3{ix}{f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x){a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x}(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(x){b}  The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the private placement of shares during the year. The funds raised during the year has been
applied for the purpose for which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending
application of proceeds,
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(xi){a) We report that no fraud by the company has been noticed or reported during the year nor have we
been informed of any such case by the management. As regards to fraud on the company, there
have been 1 instance aggregating to Rs. 6.76 Lakhs wherein fraud has been perpetrated by the
borrower of the Company.

(xi)(b)  During the year, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{xi)f{c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3{xii){a), (b) and {c] of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{xiii)  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xivi{a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

{xiv){b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under
audit have been considered by us.

{xv}  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3{xv} of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi}{a) The Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934},

{(xvi}(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a
valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(xvi){c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
aof India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(xvi){d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3{xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year.
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{xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 41 to the financial staternents, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
1o our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this Is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{xx){a)  In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
26{b) to the financial statements.

(x){b}  There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
1o a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6} of section 135 of Companies Act,
This matter has been disclosed in note 26(b) to the financial statements.

For Agiwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
mz/m Registration Number::000181N
/ - J o B A
C//Z%M-’% .I

-

per P.C. Agiwal
Partner
Membership Number: 080475
UDIN: 24080475BKFKYZ5934
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 20, 2024
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2{f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles
Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DMI( Housing Finance
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAF"). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements
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A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
staterents for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
{1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditicns, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion